
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 

Audit and Risk Committee 
14 March 2022 

 
Time 
 

2.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Regulatory 

Venue 
 

Council Chamber - 4th Floor - Civic Centre 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Alan Butt (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Jonathan Yardley (Con) 
 

Labour Independent Member  

Cllr Mary Bateman 
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Craig Collingswood 
Cllr Clare Simm 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
 
Conservative  
Cllr Andrew McNeil 
 

Mr Mike Ager 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Fabrica Hastings 
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 552699 or Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  https://wolverhamptoninternet.moderngov.co.uk 

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 550320 

 

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room. 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declaration of interests  
 

3 Minutes of previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 
 [For approval] 

 

4 Matters arising  
 [To consider any matters arising from the minutes] 

 

DECISION ITEMS 
 
5 Strategic Risk Register (Pages 9 - 12) 
 [To receive an update on the strategic risk register.] 

 

6 Grant Thornton Progress Report  
 [To receive a progress report from Grant Thornton progress.] (To follow.) 

 

7 Grant Thornton Annual Audit Report (Pages 13 - 40) 
 [To receive an annual audit report from Grant Thornton.] 

 

8 Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference Annual Review (Pages 41 - 46) 
 [To receive an update on the Audit and Risk Committee - Terms of Reference 

Review.] 
 

9 Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023 (Pages 47 - 70) 
 [To receive a progress report on the internal audit plan 2022-2023]. 

 

10 Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 71 - 82) 
 [To receive a progress report on the internal audit plan.] 

 

11 Counter Fraud Update (Pages 83 - 96) 
 [To receive an update on counter fraud.] 

 

12 Payment Transparency (Pages 97 - 98) 
 [To receive an update on payment transparency.] 

 

13 Measures to Improve Local Audit Delays  
 [To receive a report on the measures to improve local audit delays.] (To follow.) 

 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Audit and Risk Committee 
Minutes - 6 December 2021 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee 
 
Cllr Alan Butt (Chair) 
Cllr Jonathan Yardley (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Mary Bateman  
Cllr Phillip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Craig Collingswood 
Cllr Clare Simm  
Cllr Milkinder Jaspal 
Mike Ager  
 
Conservative 
Cllr Andrew McNeil  
 
Employees 
Claire Nye                     Director of Finance  
David Pattison              Chief Operating Officer 
Richard Lawrence         Director of Regeneration   
Peter Farrow                 Head of Audit  
Ian Cotterill                   Audit Business Partner  
Mike Wilkes                  Audit Business Partner  
Fabrica Hastings          Democratic Services Officer  
Jaswinder Kaur            Democratic Services Manager  
 
In attendance  
Jon Roberts                  Grant Thornton  
 

 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2 Declaration of interests 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

3 Minutes of previous meeting 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 September 2021 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 

4 Matters arising 
In response to a query raised regarding, the progress to recruit an Independent 
Member, to the Audit and Risk Committee. The Committee were advised that one 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

application, had been received and the candidate would be interviewed, and the 
process would be completed by the next scheduled meeting in 2022. 
 

5 Annual Governance Statement - 6 months update 
David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer, presented the Annual Governance 
Statement - 6 months update, that gave an overview of the progress made to action 
good practice and to ensuring adequate assurance is in place at the Council.  
 
The Committee were advised that good governance remained in place, and that 
consistent regular checks would take place, to provide assurance.  
The Corporate Code of Governance was being updated and would be scheduled for 
adoption early in 2022, subject to approval at the Governance and Ethics Committee.  
 
The Finance team would be setting the budget for 2022-2023 and a detailed Annual 
Governance Statement for 2022-2023, would be presented to the Committee in the 
new year.  
 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the contents of the mid-year update re the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement for 2021-2022 be approved. 

 
6 Financial Management Code – update 

Claire Nye, Director of Finance, presented the Financial Management Code – 
update, that detailed the improvements made to ensure the Councils financial 
resilience and the compliance required for the next financial year.  
 
The Committee were advised that the summary of findings from the initial self-
assessment undertaken in June 2021, indicated an overall green rating, which 
reflects that compliance is being demonstrated in the Councils financial processes.  
 
The Council will continue  to demonstrate compliance with the Financial 
Management Code and further updates would be brought before the Committee later 
in the year.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the update on the Councils compliance with the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code following a six-month review be noted. 

 
7 Grant Thornton Progress Report 

Jon Roberts, Grant Thornton, presented the Grant Thornton Progress Report that 
outlined the progress made and future progress.  
 
The Committee were advised on the finalised audit findings report and that the 
unqualified opinion was received to the Council after the 30 September 2021. 
 
The Committee were advised on the grant claims certified progress including the 
Teachers’ Pension and Housing Benefit Grant claims, that were completed ahead of 
deadlines with few findings to report to the Committee.  
 
The Government continued to implement the Redmond Review findings with 
activities/ discussions conducted in December 2021, between Audit Firms and the 
Minister/ Civil Servants, regarding ideas for improvement and progress. Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 
Claire Nye, Director of Finance, Advised the Committee that the value for money 
report would be circulated to Members once completed ahead of the March 2022 
meeting.  
 
Councillor Craig Collingswood, was pleased that the report identified that the West 
Midlands Pension Fund, held the highest level of assurance.   
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Progress Report and Update provided by Grant Thornton be noted. 
 

8 Appointment of the External Auditor 
Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the Appointment of the External Auditor 
report, which was recommending that the Committee seek approval from full Council 
that the Council  opt into the national agreement with Public Sector Auditor 
Appointments regarding the recruitment of the External Auditors from April 2023. 
 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the invitation from the Public Sector Audit Appointments to opt into the 
national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023 be recommended to 
Council for approval. 

 
9 Internal Audit Progress Report 

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the Internal Audit Progress Report that 
provided the Committee with a summary of the internal audit reviews completed to 
date, and the levels of assurance assigned to each such review. A narrative was also 
provided regarding any key issues identified.  
   
The Committee were advised that the school audit visit programme, had been put on 
hold throughout 2020-2021 as a result of Covid-19, but that they had recommenced 
from September 2021.  
 
The Audit team had adopted a more continuous audit  approach to transaction 
testing on the Council’s key financial systems. A summary report of the year’s 
findings will then be produced at the end of the year and reported to the Committee. 
However, any significant issues would be flagged with the service area immediately 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the contents of the latest internal audit update as at the end of quarter 
two be noted. 

 
10 Internal Audit Charter 

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the Internal Audit Charter report. He outlined 
the key objectives and responsibilities for the professional practice of Internal 
Auditing, based around the CIPFA model and relevant legislation.  
The Committee were advised that equalities issues now form part of the Audit 
Universe, based on the Councils stance on equalities, and are implicit in a number of 
audit related activities undertaken during each year.   
 
Resolved: 

1. That the annual review of the Internal Audit Charter be approved. 
 Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

11 Counter Fraud Update 
Mike Wilkes, Audit Business Partner, presented the Counter Fraud Update. This 
included details on a range of counter fraud activities undertaken by the Council. 
That included reference to the work undertaken to recover a small number of Covid 
business grant payments that had been made to those who were later found not to 
qualify.  
 
In response to a question raised regarding any identified themes associated with the 
recovery of the funds back to the Council. He advised that some businesses may 
have thought they were eligible but weren’t based on a matter of interpretation.  
 
In response to a question raised regarding any local or national fraud indicators 
including around organised crime, the Committee were advised that the Council does 
receive and consider regular bulletins from the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) 
and other government bodies and takes these into account in the work it undertakes 
in this area.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the contents of the latest Audit Services Counter Fraud Update be noted. 
 

12 Payment Transparency 
Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the Payment Transparency update. He 
advised the Committee that spend data continues to be published online and that no 
armchair auditor requests have been received since the last meeting.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Council’s current position with regards to the publication of all 
expenditure be noted. 

 
13 Strategic Risk Register 

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the Strategic Risk Register update. He 
advised that Hayley Reid, had moved to a full-time role as the Regulatory 
Governance Manager at the West Midlands Pension Fund and would therefore he 
would present the Strategic Risk Register update to Committee. 
 
The Committee were advised that the format of the Strategic Risk Register, had been 
amended in order to more clearly identify risk mitigation, actions taken since the 
previous meeting and where sources of assurance could be obtained. The register is 
updated on an ongoing basis, in line with the Councils corporate risk management 
framework. Three risks remained red included; 

Rising Unemployment; 
Social Care Providers - Adults; 
Reputation/ Loss of Public Trust. 

 
Resolved: 

1. That the latest summary of the Council’s Strategic Risk Register, as per 
Appendix 1 be noted. 

 
14 Exclusion of press and public 

Resolved:  

1. That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 
15 Civic Halls Programme 

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration and David Pattison, Chief Operating 
Officer, presented the Civic Halls Programme report. They provided an overview of 
the progress and future development of the Civic Halls Programme.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the update on the Civic Halls Programme including construction 
progress, financial and confidential legal position and governance 
arrangements be noted. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

Recommendation for noting: 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The latest summary of the Council’s Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix A.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022  

  
Report title Strategic Risk Register Update  

 
  

Accountable director Claire Nye, Finance  

Originating service Audit 

Accountable employee Peter Farrow 

Tel 

Email 

Head of Audit  

01902 5504460 

Peter.Farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

SEB 24 February 2022 

Page 9

Agenda Item No: 5

mailto:Peter.Farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To keep members of the Audit and Risk Committee aware of the key strategic risks faced 

by the Council and how it can gain assurance that these risks are being mitigated. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The Council is no different to any organisation and will always face risks in achieving its 

objectives and priorities. Sound risk management can be seen as the clear identification 

and management of such risks to an acceptable level. 

 

2.2  The Strategic risk register was last presented to Committee in December  Since that time 

the risk register has been reviewed in conjunction with risk owners, reviewed by SEB  

and updated where appropriate.   
 

2.4 The strategic risk register does not include all the risks that the Council faces. It 

represents the most significant risks that could potentially impact on the achievement of 

the Council’s corporate priorities. Other risks are captured within directorate, programme, 

project or partnership risk registers in line with the Council’s corporate risk management 

framework.  
 

2.5 A summary of the strategic risk register is included at Appendix A of this report which 
sets out the status of the risks as at March 2022. These risks are reviewed on an on-
going basis and can be influenced by both external and internal factors and as such, may 
fluctuate over time. As discussed at the last Committee meeting, the format of the 
register has been amended to separate out both further actions to be taken in order to 
mitigate the risks, and where sources of assurance can be sought. 

 

3.0 Progress, options, discussion 

 

3.1 The strategic risk register will be updated as required and presented at approximately 

quarterly intervals to the Committee.  The strategic risk register does not include all the 

risks that the Council faces. It represents the most significant risks that could potentially 

impact on the achievement of the corporate priorities. As stated above, other risks are 

captured within directorate, programme, project or partnership risk registers in line with 

the Council’s corporate risk management framework.  

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in this report as 

Councillors are only requested to note the risk register summaries. Financial implications 

may arise from the implementation of strategies employed to mitigate individual risks, but 

these will be evaluated and reported separately if required. [GE/25022022/B] 

 

Page 10



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 Although there may be some legal implications arising from the implementation of the 

strategies employed to mitigate individual risks, there are no direct legal implications 

arising from this report.  

          [TC/28022022/F] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 There will be equalities implications arising from the implementation of a number of the 

strategies employed to mitigate individual risks. These equalities implications will be 

addressed, where appropriate, through the various mechanisms taken to manage each 

risk. 

 

7.0 All other implications  

 

7.1 Although there may be implications arising from the implementation of the strategies 

employed to mitigate individual risks, there are no direct implications arising from this 

report. 

 

8.0 Schedule of background papers  

 

 Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register  

  

  

   

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13

A
genda Item

 N
o: 7



Commercial in confidence

 

 

•

•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 34



P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 38



P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 Agenda Item No:   

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022 

  
Report title Audit and Risk Committee – Terms of 

Reference 
  

  

Accountable director Claire Nye, Finance 

Originating service Audit 

Accountable employee 

 

Report to be/has been    

considered by 

 

Peter Farrow 

Tel 

Email 

 

Not applicable 

Head of Audit 

01902 554460 

peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Recommendation for action: 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee is recommended to undertake a review of: 

 

1. The terms of reference for the Committee in line with recognised best practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 41

Agenda Item No: 8

mailto:peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 
 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 The terms of reference for the Audit and Risk Committee were last reviewed and 

approved by the Committee in March 2021. It is recognised best practice that such terms 

of reference are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure they remain fit for purpose. 

 

2.0 Background 

 
2.1 There have been no changes to the terms of reference since their last review. 
  

3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 

 

3.1 The terms of reference will continue to be presented to the Audit and Risk Committee on 

a regular basis for review, in order for the Committee to determine their continued 

suitability. 

  

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

[GE/25022022/S] 

 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report.  

         [TC/28022022/C] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 Equalities issues are implicit within the work of the Audit and Risk Committee throughout 

the year. Specific equality issues may also be addressed within individual activities 

undertaken by both the internal and external auditors, and where appropriate will be 

reported back to the committee. 

 

7.0 All other implications 

 

7.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

 

8.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

8.1 None 
  

Page 42



This report is PUBLIC 
 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 
Audit and Risk Committee - Terms of Reference 

Statement of purpose 

Our Audit and Risk Committee is a key component of the Council’s corporate 
governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, assurance 
and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and financial standards. 

The purpose of our Audit and Risk Committee is to provide independent assurance to the 
members of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal control 
environment. It provides independent review of the governance, risk management and control 
frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual governance processers. It 
oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance 
arrangements are in place. 

Governance, risk and control 

To review the Council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good governance 
framework and consider annual governance reports and assurances.  

To review the annual governance statement prior to approval and consider whether it properly 
reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, taking into account internal audit’s 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, 
risk management and control. 

To consider the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review assurances and 
assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 

To consider the Council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately addresses the 
risks and priorities of the Council. 

To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the Council. 

To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the committee. 

To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation of 
agreed actions. 

To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the Council from fraud and 
corruption. 

To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources. 

To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant partnerships or 
collaborations. 

  

Page 43



This report is PUBLIC 
 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Internal Audit 

To approve the internal audit charter. 

To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers of internal audit 
services and to make recommendations.  

To approve the risk based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource requirements, 
the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work required to place reliance upon 
those other sources.  

To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and resource 
requirements.  

To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to determine 
if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.  

To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from additional roles or 
responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of internal audit. To approve and 
periodically review safeguards to limit such impairments. 

To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s performance during the 
year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit services. These will 
include: 

 Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of concern and action 
in hand as a result of internal audit work; 

 Regular reports on the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme; 

 Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note, considering 
whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it must be included in the annual 
governance statement.  

To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report: 

 The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results of the quality 
assurance and improvement programme that supports the statement - these will indicate 
the reliability of the conclusions of internal audit.  

 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control together with the summary of the work 
supporting the opinion - these will assist the committee in reviewing the annual 
governance statement.  

To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has concluded that 
management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the authority or there are 
concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed actions.  

To contribute to the quality assurance and improvement programme and in particular, to the 
external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place at least once every five years.  

Page 44



This report is PUBLIC 
 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the annual governance 
statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and Audit Regulations. 

To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the head of internal audit, 
including the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee. 
 

External Audit 

To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the external auditor’s 
annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by PSAA or the 
authority’s auditor panel as appropriate. 

To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to those 
charged with governance.  

To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  

To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for 
money.  

To commission work from internal and external audit.  

To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and internal 
audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.  

Financial reporting 

To receive detailed training in respect of the process associated with the preparation, sign off, 
audit and publication of the Council’s annual statement of accounts. 

To monitor the on-going progress towards publication of the Council’s annual statement of 
accounts, ensuring the statutory deadlines are achieved. 

To obtain explanations for all significant variances between planned and actual expenditure to 
the extent that it impacts on the annual statement of accounts. 

To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed, appropriate accounting estimates have been included 
in the Council’s financial statements and whether there are concerns arising from the financial 
statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the Council. 

To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues arising 
from the audit of the accounts.  

Accountability arrangements 

To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, conclusions and 
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk 
management and internal control frameworks, financial reporting arrangements, and internal 
and external audit functions.  

To report to full Council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in relation to the 
terms of reference, and the effectiveness of the committee in meeting its purpose.  

To publish an annual report on the work of the Committee. 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Recommendation for decision: 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee is recommended to: 

 

1. Review and approve the risk based internal audit plan for 2022-2023. 

 

 

  

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022 

  
Report title Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023 
  

Accountable director Claire Nye, Finance 

Originating service Audit 

Accountable employee Peter Farrow  

Tel 

Email 

Head of Audit   

01902 554460 

Peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

SEB                           24 February 2022 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item No: 9



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of internal audit is to provide the Council with an independent and objective 

opinion on risk management, control and governance and their effectiveness in achieving 

the Council’s agreed objectives.  

1.2 The purpose of this document is to provide the Council with a risk-based internal audit 

plan, incorporating a strategic statement for internal audit, and based upon an 

assessment of assurance needs. The assessment of assurance needs exercise is 

undertaken to identify the systems of control and determine the frequency of audit 

coverage. The assessment will be used to direct internal audit resources to those 

aspects of the Council which are assessed as generating the greatest risk to the 

achievement of its objectives. 

 

2.0 Background 

 
2.1 Internal audit is a statutory requirement for all Local Authorities. The audit service 

provided to the Council is in accordance with the Local Government Act (1972), the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations Act and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 

3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 

 

3.1 Progress against the delivery of the internal audit plan will be reported back to the Audit 

and Risk Committee on a quarterly basis. 

  

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.  The 

audit plan detailed will be implemented using current budgeted internal audit resources. 

 [GE/25022022/C] 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report.  

  [TC/28022022/A] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 Equalities form part of the wider Audit Universe that is considered as part of the 

formulation of the internal audit plan. Equalities issues may also form part of individual 

audit reviews where appropriate. 

 

7.0 All other implications 

 

7.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

 

8.0 Schedule of background papers 

 Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023 

 

Page 48



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Draft Internal Audit 
Plan 2019-2020 

City of Wolverhampton Council  
 
2022 - 2023 Internal Audit Plan 

 

Page 51



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Index 

A quick guide to the audit and assurance planning process 

Glossary of terms 

Introduction 

Assessing the effectiveness of risk management and governance 

Assessing the effectiveness of the system of control 

The assessment of assurance needs methodology 

The assessment of assurance needs – identifying the Council’s priorities and the 
associated risks 

Developing an internal audit plan 

Considerations required of the Audit and Risk Committee and Council’s Senior 
Management Team   

How the internal audit service will be delivered 

The internal audit plan  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

A quick guide to the audit and assurance planning process 
 

Step 1- Audit universe/auditable areas 

Identify the audit universe (i.e. a list of themes and areas within them that may require 
assurance) using a variety of methods: 

 Areas of potential risk identified through a variety of sources (including the strategic 
risk register) as having the potential to impact upon the Council’s ability to deliver its 
objectives. Then, identify if we can gain assurance that any of these risks are being 
managed adequately from other sources of assurance. 

 Key Financial Systems - work undertaken in close liaison with the external auditors, in 
order to help inform and support the work they are required to undertake.  

 Areas where we use auditor’s knowledge, management requests and past experience 
etc.  

                           

▼ 

 

Step 2 – Ranking 

Where appropriate score each auditable area as a high, medium or low 
assurance need using the CIPFA scoring methodology of materiality/business 
impact/audit experience/risk/ potential for fraud. 

                        

    ▼ 

 

Step 3 – Three year cycle 

List the likely medium and high assurance need themes and/or areas 
for the next three years. High need themed areas will be reviewed 
annually, medium need usually once in a three-year cycle, while a 
watching brief will remain on the low needs. 

 

      ▼ 

 

Step 4 - Next Years Plan 

List the themes and where appropriate the types of work 
that will be undertaken in 2022-2023 in the internal audit 
plan.  

 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 

A glossary of terms 

Definition of internal auditing 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 
 
Governance 
The arrangements in place to ensure that the Council fulfils its overall purpose, achieves its 
intended outcomes for citizens and service users and operates in an economical, effective, 
efficient and ethical manner. 
 
Control environment 
Comprises the systems of governance, risk management and internal control. The key elements 
include:  

 establishing and monitoring the achievement of the Council’s objectives  

 the facilitation of policy and decision-making ensuring compliance with established policies, 
procedures, laws and regulations – including how risk management is embedded  

 ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources and for securing 
continuous improvement  

 the financial management of the Council and the reporting of financial management  

 the performance management of the Council and the reporting of performance 
management. 

 

System of internal control 
The totality of the way an organisation designs, implements, tests and modifies controls in 
specific systems, to provide assurance at the corporate level that the organisation is operating 
efficiently and effectively.  
 

Risk Management 
A logical and systematic method of establishing the context, identifying, analysing, evaluating, 
treating, monitoring and communicating the risks associated with any activity, function or 
process in a way that will enable the organisation to minimise losses and maximise 
opportunities. 
 
Risk based audit and assurance reviews 
A review that:  

 identifies and records the objectives, risks and controls  

 establishes the extent to which the objectives of the system are consistent with higher-level 
corporate objectives  

 evaluates the controls in principle to decide whether or not they are appropriate and can be 
reasonably relied upon to achieve their purpose, addressing the organisation’s risks 
identifies any instances of over and under control and provides management with a clear 
articulation of residual risks where existing controls are inadequate  

 tests the effectiveness of controls i.e. through compliance and/or substantive testing  

 arrives at conclusions and produces a report, leading to management actions as necessary 
and providing an opinion on the effectiveness of the control environment. 

 
 
 

Page 54



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 
Audit and Risk Committee 
The governance group charged with independent assurance of the adequacy of the internal 
control environment and the integrity of financial reporting. 
 
Assurance 
A confident assertion, based on sufficient, relevant and reliable evidence, that something is 
satisfactory, with the aim of giving comfort to the recipient. The basis of the assurance will be 
set out and it may be qualified if full comfort cannot be given. The Head of Audit may be unable 
to give an assurance if arrangements are unsatisfactory. Assurance can come from a variety of 
sources and internal audit can be seen as the ‘third line of defence’ with the first line being the 
Council’s policies, processes and controls and the second being managers’ own checks of this 
first line. 
 
Internal Audit standards 
 

 

 
The internal audit team have adopted and comply with the standards 
as laid out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

Page 55



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

Introduction 
 The purpose of internal audit is to provide the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and Audit 

and Risk Committee with an independent and objective opinion on risk management, control 
and governance and their effectiveness in achieving the Council’s agreed objectives.  In 
order to provide this opinion, we are required to consider annually the risk management and 
governance processes within the Council.  
 

 We also need to review on a cyclical basis, the operation of the internal control systems. It 
should be pointed out that internal audit is not a substitute for effective internal control. The 
true role of internal audit is to contribute to internal control by examining, evaluating and 
reporting to management on its adequacy and effectiveness. 
 

 There is a statutory requirement for internal audit to work in accordance with the ‘proper 
audit practices’. These ‘proper audit practices’ are in effect the ‘Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards’. The Council has an Internal Audit Charter which is reviewed and approved 
annually by the Audit and Risk Committee and defines the activity, purpose, authority and 
responsibility of internal audit, and establishes its position within the Council. This document 
sits alongside the charter and helps determine how the internal audit service will be 
developed. 

 

 The purpose of this document is to provide the Council with an internal audit plan, based 
upon an assessment of its assurance needs. The assessment of assurance needs exercise 
is undertaken to identify the systems of control and determine the frequency of audit 
coverage. The assessment will be used to direct internal audit resources to those aspects of 
the Council which are assessed as generating the greatest risk to the achievement of its 
objectives. 

 

Assessing the effectiveness of risk management and    
governance 
The effectiveness of risk management and governance will be reviewed annually, to gather 
evidence to support our opinion to the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and the Audit and 
Risk Committee. This opinion is reflected in the general level of assurance given in our annual 
report and where appropriate within separate reports in areas that will touch upon risk 
management and governance. 
 

Assessing the effectiveness of the system of control 
 In order to be adequate and effective, management should: 

 Establish and monitor the achievement of the Council’s objectives and facilitate policy 
and decision making. 

 Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the Council’s objectives. 

 Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources. 

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. 

 Safeguard the council’s assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including those 
arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption. 

 Ensure the integrity and reliability of information, accounts and data. 
 

 These objectives are achieved by the implementation of effective management processes 
and through the operation of a sound system of internal control. The consideration of risk 
management and governance will cover the control environment and risk assessment 
elements, at a high level. The programme of work developed as the outcome of the 
assessment of assurance need exercise will cover the system level control activities. 

Page 56



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 

 The plan contained within this report is our assessment of the audit work required in order to 
measure, evaluate and report on the effectiveness of risk management, governance and 
internal control. 

 

Assessment of assurance needs methodology 
 Internal audit should encompass the whole internal control system and not be limited only to 

financial control systems. The scope of internal audit work should reflect the core objectives 
of the Council and the key risks that it faces.  As such, each audit cycle starts with a 
comprehensive analysis of the whole system of internal control that ensures the 
achievements of the Council’s objectives. 
 

 Activities that contribute significantly to the Council’s internal control system, and also to the 
risks it faces, may not have an intrinsic financial value necessarily.  Therefore, our approach 
seeks to assign a relative assurance need value. The purpose of this approach is to enable 
the delivery of assurance to the Council over the reliability of its system of control in an 
effective and efficient manner. 
 

 We have undertaken our assessment using the following process: 

 We identified the core objectives of the Council and, where available, the specific key 
risks associated with the achievement of those objectives  

 We then identified auditable themes and areas that impact significantly on the 
achievement of the control objectives. 

 We assigned assurance need values to the auditable themes and areas, based on the 
evidence we obtained. 
 

 The audit plan is drawn out of the assessment of assurance need. The proposed plan 
covers the 2022-2023 financial year and is detailed at the end of this document. 

 

The assessment of assurance needs - identifying the Council’s 
priorities and the associated risks 

At the time this audit plan was prepared, the Council Plan was structured around six priorities: 
 

 
 

Page 57



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 
Also, at the time this plan was produced, and following the merging of the strategic risk register 
with the Covid-19 risk register that had been introduced at the height of the pandemic, the 
Council had identified the following strategic risks as potentially impacting upon its ability to 
achieve its priorities: 
 

 Impact on Residents Health and Wellbeing 

 Businesses Closing 

 Safeguarding Children 

 Safeguarding Adults 

 Reputation/Loss of Public Trust 

 Social Care Providers Adults 

 Employee Wellbeing 

 Education Provision 

 City Wide Regeneration 

 Recovery (Relighting our City) 

 Rising Unemployment 

 Information Governance 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Cyber Security 

 Civic Halls 

 Climate Change 

 Adult Social Care Provision and Social Work/Occupational Therapy 

 Related Parties 
 

Identifying the “audit universe” 

 In order to undertake the assessment of assurance need, it is first necessary to define the 
audit universe for the Council. The audit universe describes all the systems, functions, 
operations and activities undertaken by the Council. Given that the key risk to the Council is 
that it fails to achieve its objectives, we have identified the audit universe by determining 
which systems and operations impact upon the achievement of the core objectives of the 
Council, as identified above, and the management objectives.  These auditable areas 
include the control processes put in place to address the key risks. 
 

 In addition to this, there are also common systems and functions which are generic to all 
areas, along with a number of mandatory reviews. Where deemed appropriate they may 
also be included in the audit universe set out in detail at the end of this document. 

 
Assessing the risk of auditable areas within the assurance framework 

 Risk is defined as “The threat that an event or action will adversely affect an organisation's 
ability to achieve its business objectives and execute its strategies.” 
Source: Economist Intelligence Unit - Executive Briefing. 
 

 There are a number of key factors for assessing the degree of assurance need within the 
auditable area. These have been used in our calculation for each auditable area and are based 
on the following factors: 
 

 Materiality 

 Business impact 

 Audit experience 

 Risk 

 Potential for fraud 

Page 58



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 

 In this model, the assignment of the relative values are translated into an assessment of 
assurance need. These ratings used are high, medium or low to establish the frequency of 
coverage of internal audit. 
 

Developing an internal audit plan 
 The internal audit plan is based, wherever possible, on management’s risk priorities, as set out 

in the Council’s own risk analysis/assessment. The plan has been designed so as to, wherever 
possible, cover the key risks identified by such risk analysis. 
 

 In establishing the plan, the relationship between risk and frequency of audit remains absolute. 
The level of risk will always determine the frequency by which auditable themes and areas will 
be subject to audit.  This ensures that key risk themes and areas are looked at on a frequent 
basis.  The aim of this approach is to ensure the maximum level of assurance can be provided 
with the minimum level of audit coverage. 
 

 It is recognised that a good internal audit plan should achieve a balance between setting out 
the planned audit work and retaining flexibility to respond to changing risks and priorities 
during the year. Traditionally Audit Services produced quite detailed internal audit annual 
plans identifying all the individual audits planned for the year, and this approach does have 
the advantage of providing a clear route map to the end of year opinion. However, as the 
year progresses it is likely that the risks and organisational priorities will change, resulting in 
changes to the plan. This is a particular issue within the local authority environment at this 
moment in time, due to the pace of change and high level of uncertainty affecting the risk 
environment. Therefore, for this year we are again keeping the audit plan more open than 
previously, and, where appropriate, the new plan reflects themes and types of work rather 
than individual audits. More detailed working plans will be maintained operationally within 
Audit Services. This approach should hopefully result in a more realistic and flexible plan. 
 

 Auditor’s judgement will be applied in assessing the number of days required for each audit 
identified in the plan. 
 

 The assessment of assurance need’s purpose is to: 
 

 determine priorities and establish the most cost-effective means of achieving audit 
objectives; 

 assist in the direction and control of all audit work. 
 

 This exercise builds on and supersedes previous internal audit plans. 
 

 Included within the plan, in addition to audit days for field assignments are: 

 a contingency allocation, which will be utilised when the need arises, for example, special 
projects, investigations, advice and assistance, unplanned and ad-hoc work as and when 
requested. 

 a follow-up allocation, which will be utilised to assess the degree of implementation 
achieved in relation to key recommendations agreed by management during the prior year. 

 an audit management allocation, which is used for management, quality control, client and 
external audit liaison and for preparation for, and attendance at various member meetings 
and Audit Committee etc.  
 

Page 59



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

Considerations required of the Audit and Risk Committee and the 
Council’s Senior Management Team 

 Are the objectives and key risks identified consistent with those recognised by the Council? 

 Does the plan include all the themes which would be expected to be subject to internal 
audit? 

 Are the risk scores applied to the plan reasonable and reflect the Council?  

 Is the allocation of audit resource accepted, and agreed as appropriate, given the level of 
risk identified? 

 Does the plan cover the key risks as they are recognised? 

 
How the internal audit service will be delivered 

 
Staffing 

The audit team follow the Council’s core behaviours. They are recruited, trained and provided 
with opportunities for continuing professional development. Employees are also sponsored to 
undertake relevant professional qualifications. All employees are subject to the Council’s 
appraisal scheme, which leads to an identification of training needs. In this way, we ensure that 
employees are suitably skilled to deliver the internal audit service. This includes the delivery of 
specialist skills which are provided by staff within the service with the relevant knowledge, skills 
and experience. 
 
Quality assurance 
All audit work undertaken is subject to robust quality assurance procedures as required by relevant 
professional standards.  These arrangements are set out in the division’s standards manual and 
require that all working papers and reports are subject to thorough review by professionally 
qualified accountancy staff. 
 
Resources required 
It is estimated that approximately 1,400 internal audit days (including fraud, assurance and 
contingency work) will be required to deliver the audit plan. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
       Internal Audit Plan - 2017/18 

 
 

                                                                                              wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 
 
 
 

 
Audit Service’s External Clients 
 

 

The City of Wolverhampton Council’s Audit 
Services also provides the internal audit service 
to a number of other associated public sector 
based organisations in the West Midlands. 
Separate internal audit plans are produced for 
each of these and Audit Services reports back to 
each of their respective Audit Committees or 
equivalent. 

 

 

 

Page 61



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

The internal audit plan 2022-2023 
 
The following reviews and associated services will be delivered across the Council: 

 

Auditable Area Purpose  

National fraud initiative 
(NFI) 

In accordance with Cabinet Office requirements we will lead on the Council’s NFI data matching exercise. 

Fraud investigations The carrying out of investigations into areas of suspected or reported fraudulent activity across the Council. 

Counter fraud activities A series of Council wide pro-active fraud activities, including the targeted testing of areas open to the potential 
of fraudulent activity including where appropriate maintenance of the Council’s fraud risk register, hosting 
raising fraud awareness seminars and running fraud surgeries and e-learning. 

Value for money reviews 

 

During the year discussions will be held with senior management regarding the identification of potential value 
for money areas, where Audit Services could be of assistance in performing value for money advice and 
or/reviews. 

Payment transparency An ongoing review of compliance with the government’s data transparency publishing requirements. 

Recommendation follow up A regular and ongoing follow up of key internal audit recommendations made across the Council in 2021 -
2022.  

Development and advice Reviewing system developments on key controls and providing advice relating to systems which are not 
necessarily covered by audits originally scheduled for 2022-2023. 

Contingency  Special projects, advice and assistance, unplanned and ad-hoc work as and when requested. 

Management  Day to day management of the internal audit service, quality control, client and external audit liaison and 
preparation for, and attendance at various meetings. 

Audit and Risk Committee Preparation and presentation of papers for the Audit and Risk Committee. This also includes providing advice 
and training to support committee members. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 62



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

COVID Support Schemes The team will continue to support the various COVID19 related support schemes, 
such as business support grants and test and trace support payments, which are 
likely to still be in place at the beginning of April 2022.  
 

High 

COVID Post Payment Assurance Work The team will undertake on-going post assurance checks to ensure payments have 
been paid to applicants that meet the eligibility criteria. The team will look to recover 
payments where eligibility has not been met and look to prosecute applicants who 
have applied for financial support under false pretences. This will also include 
focussed audits on the governance and management of these schemes. 
 

High 

Accounts Payable (Creditors) 

These relate to the annual key financial systems. They are high-level reviews which 
provide assurance of the core controls within each of the financial systems.  

High 
 

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) 

Budgetary Control 

Fixed Assets 

General Ledger 

Housing Benefits 

Housing Rents 

Income Management 

Local Taxes (Council Tax & NNDR) 

Treasury Management 

Annual Certifications These will include verification of the calculations provided on Senior Officer 
Remuneration and WMPF Payroll Contribution Statements. 
 

Medium 

Procurement Non-Compliance 
Monitoring 
 

A high-level review of contracts to ensure they have been procured in accordance 
with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and procurement regulations. 
 

Medium 

Payroll Allowances and Expenses 
 

A review of payroll allowances and expenses to ensure they are paid in accordance 
with the employee’s terms and conditions. 
 

Medium 

RIPA Compliance A compliance review to ensure that new RIPA processes and procedures have been 
embedded with the Council. 
 

Medium 

P
age 63



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

Sickness - Manager Self Service A review to ensure managers are reporting sickness via the approved sickness 
recording procedures, which is administered through the Council's Agresso system. 
 

Medium 

Recruitment Selection A review of the recruitment selection process to ensure it is in accordance with the 
Council policies and procedures including compliance with commitments in terms of 
equalities.  
 

Medium 

Elections A focussed review on a specified element of the elections process. Audit Services 
will work with the Elections Team to ensure the audit provides assurance on 
key/high risk areas. 
 

Medium 

Information Governance There is currently a risk around Information Governance on the Council Strategic 
Risk Register. Audit Services will work with the Council's Information Governance 
Team to ensure the audit provides assurance on key/high risk areas. 
 

Medium 

Project Management Office To provide on-going support and guidance on ensure Council programmes and 
projects are managed in accordance with the Council's approved project 
management approach. 
 

Medium 

Governance A focussed review on a specified element of the various governance processes 
overseen by the Council's Democratic Support Team. Audit Services will work with 
the Service Manager for this area to ensure the audit provides assurance on 
key/high risk areas. 
 

Medium 

Professional Conversation Assurance 
Reviews 

These are regular reviews of the Council’s Professional Conversation process, 
which has replaced the Council’s Employee Appraisal Scheme. 
 

Medium 

ICT Asset Management Controls 
 

A high-level review to ensure the Council has appropriate systems and security 
measures in place to control their ICT assets. 
 

Medium 

Social Worker Training and 
Development  

Following high profile national cases, to provide assurance that systems are in place 
to ensure and evidence Social Workers are up to date with training / take advantage 
of development opportunities provided. 

Medium 

P
age 64



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

Adoption Support Fund To provide assurance that the Special Guardianship element of ASF has appropriate 
controls in place and is paid in accordance with established guidance. 
 

Medium 

Strengthening Families Early Intervention workforce skills (non - qualified SWs) are appropriately skilled to 
undertake duties assigned. 
  

Medium 

Troubled Families – Grant Certifications The will involves verifying and certifying the quarterly grant claims. 
 

Medium 

School Audits A review of the governance and financial procedures in place at a sample of nursery, 
primary, secondary, special schools, and pupil referral units to ensure coverage of all 
local authority maintained schools over a predetermined cycle. These will be 
conducted in accordance with Government guidance around Covid-19. 
 

Medium 

SEND and Post 16 Provision in Schools A review of the arrangements in place to prepare pupils with Education Healthcare 
Plans for independence. 
 

Medium 

Alternative Provision  
 

Review of the overall approach and framework in place for the placement of children 
and vulnerable young people in alternative education provision. 
 

Medium 

Commissioning arrangements for out of 
city provisions 
 

A review of the commissioning arrangement to ensure that forward planning takes 
place and procurement rules are complied with. 

 

Schools Music Service 
 

Review of the administrative arrangements for the provision of the music service to 
schools in Wolverhampton. 
 

Medium 

Service Provider Fee Review (carried 
forward) 

A review of the different provider payment frameworks to ensure the process is fair 
and equitable to all providers. 
 

Medium 

Community Occupational Therapy 
Service.  

A review of the governance, management and internal control arrangements in 
operation for the Community Occupational Therapy Service. 
 

Medium 

Care Act Compliance on Provision of 
Care During Covid 

A review of Care Act compliance on provision of care during Covid (including review 
of Safeguarding Complaints Register). 

Medium 

P
age 65



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

Payments Process from CareFirst to 
Agresso 

A review to ensure appropriate processes and controls are in place for transfer of 
payment information to Agresso. 
 

Medium 

Public Health Risk Register  To provide assistance and advice around the establishment of a Public Health 
focussed risk register. 
 

Medium 

Public Health - Risk Led Review An appropriate risk led review will be undertaken following the establishment of 
Public Health’s risk register. 
 

Medium 

Use of Payments Uploads  To provide assurance that the payment upload process for high volume payments is 
working effectively. 
 

Medium 

Climate Change Action Plan  A high-level review of the management and oversight, monitoring, and reporting 
arrangements in operation for the Climate Change Action Plan. 
 

High 

Major Funding Streams 
 
 

 Future High Street Funds 

 Towns Fund 
 
A high-level review of the governance and management arrangements for the 
administration of the Fund monies awarded to the Council.  
  

High 

Blue Network ERDF Project (Parks and 
Open Spaces)  

A review of the governance and management arrangements for the delivery of the 
Blue Network project funded by ERDF monies. 
  

High 

Taxis and Private Hire Driver Checks 
and Vehicle Inspections 
 
  
 

To provide assurance that there is a robust process being followed for the vetting of 
taxi and private hire drivers, and for undertaking vehicle inspections. 
  

Medium 

Markets Incentive Scheme  
 

A review of the incentive scheme including all incentives and discounts granted to 
market traders across the Markets Service, including review of continuation of cash 
as a payment method. 
 

Medium 

P
age 66



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

Transport Grants Certification  
 

To provide a high-level assurance review to ensure the grant has been used in 
accordance with its terms and conditions. 
 

Medium 

Wolves at Work 18-24 Programme 
(Youth Employment Scheme)  

A high-level review of the governance and management arrangements developed 
for delivery of the Wolves at Work 18-24 Programme (Youth Employment Scheme).  
  

High 

IGNITE  A review of the governance, management and operational arrangements established 
for the IGNITE business and enterprise hub for providing support to small 
businesses within the city in response to the ongoing implications and impact of the 
Pandemic and EU departure. 
 

High 

Decarbonisation Grant  To provide a high-level assurance review to ensure the grant has been used in 
accordance with its terms and conditions. 
  

Medium 

Housing Capital Programme A review of governance, programme/project management, risk management, 
control systems and resource/succession planning in operation for the strategic and 
operational delivery of the Housing Capital Programme. 
 

Medium 

Private Sector Housing A review of the procedures used by Private Sector Housing enforcement. 
 

Medium 

Wolverhampton Council - Housing 
Company Limited 
 

This is a follow-up of the findings raised as part of the Homes England review. Medium 

Civic Halls 
 

To undertake an update review of the Civic Halls Programme. The scope of the 
review will be agreed further during the year 
  

High 

Performance and Insight Data 
Management 

To provide a support role to the Performance and Insight Team in ensuring the data 
is provided to them in a timely manner. Therefore, reducing the risk of inaccurate 
management information being produced. 
 

Medium 

Energy from Waste Contract 
 

A review of the contract management arrangements. 
 

Medium 

P
age 67



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

Audit Purpose of Audit 
Assurance 

Need 

Health and Safety Review An annual focussed review of an area of health and safety. This year’s review will 
focus on the process of tree inspections to minimise the risk of falling trees causing 
harm or death. 
 

Medium 

Major Regeneration Projects 
 

A focussed review of the governance and programme management for regeneration 
projects with significant strategic importance. The projects to be reviewed will be 
determined in year. 
 

High 

Council Linked Bodies An annual review of key Council linked bodies to ensure appropriate agreements 
and monitoring arrangements are in place. 
 

Medium 

City Events A review of past events and the process in place regarding future events. 
 

Medium 

Projects and Works – Information and 
Project Reporting  

 

A review of the effectiveness of information and project reporting in respect of 
Wolverhampton Homes Refurbishment Project. 

 

Medium 

Art Gallery - Catering Operation 
 

A review of the cash handling, stock management, and banking arrangements for 
the new Art Gallery café. 
 

Medium 

P
age 68



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Internal Audit Plan – 2017/18 

                                                                                                                                                                wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

2022-2023 
Internal Audit Plan 

NOT PROTECTIVELY 
MARKED 

 
Programme and Project Assurance 

 
In addition to the traditional internal audit plan, Audit Services also provide an ongoing assurance role by having an independent role on a 
number of programmes, projects boards and working groups, including: 

 

Programme and Project related assurance work 

 Information Governance  Transforming Adult Social Care Programme 

 Pay Strategy  Children’s Transformation Programme 

 Project Assurance Group  Culwell Depot Relocation and Modernisation Programme 

 Various Service Improvement Programmes  Civic Halls Programme 

 Travel Assistance Assurance Board  Business World Development Project 

 City Learning Quarter Programme  Infrastructure for Growth Board 

 Strategic Transport Asset Group  Relight Programme  

 Local Fibre Network Programme  Art Gallery Improvement Scheme Board 

 Adult Eclipse Project Board  SEND Systems 

 
 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

  

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022 

  
Report title Internal Audit Update – Quarter 3 
  

  
Accountable director Claire Nye, Finance 

Accountable employee 

 

 

Peter Farrow 
Tel 
Email 
 
 

Head of Audit 
01902 554460 
peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 

Not applicable  

 
 
Recommendation for noting: 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The contents of the latest internal audit update as at the end of quarter three.  
 
 
 
 
  

Page 71

Agenda Item No: 10

mailto:peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the progress made 

against the 2021 - 2022 internal audit plan and to provide information on recent 
work that has been completed. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The internal audit update report as at 31 December 2021 (quarter three) 

contains details of the matters arising from audit work undertaken so far this 
year. The information included in the report will feed into, and inform, the overall 
opinion in our annual internal audit report issued at the year end. It also 
updates the Committee on various other activities associated with the internal 
audit service. 

 
3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 
 
3.1 Quarterly internal audit update reports will continue to be presented to the 

Committee throughout the year. 
 
4.0 Financial implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendation in this 

report. [GE/25022022/C] 
 
5.0 Legal implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendation in this report.   

[TC/28022022/B] 
 
6.0 Equalities implications 
 
6.1 Equalities issues form part of the Audit Universe which  is used to help inform 

the Annual Internal Audit Plan. Equalities issues are also implicit in a number of 
audit related activities undertaken during each year. 

 
7.0 All other implications 
 
7.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 
 
8.0 Schedule of background papers 

8.1 There is no schedule of background papers. 
  

Page 72



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 (2018 - 2019) 
 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Update Report 
 

2021-2022 
 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Page 73



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
1 Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to bring the Audit and Risk Committee up to date with the 
progress made against the delivery of the 2021 - 2022 internal audit plan. 

The Audit and Risk Committee has a responsibility to review the effectiveness of the system of 
internal controls and also to monitor arrangements in place relating to corporate governance 
and risk management arrangements. Internal audit is an assurance function which provides an 
independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment, comprising 
risk management, control, and governance. This work update provides the committee with 
information on recent audit work that has been carried out to assist them in discharging their 
responsibility by giving the necessary assurances on the system of internal control. 

The information included in this progress report will feed into, and inform, our overall opinion in 
our internal audit annual report issued at the year end. Where appropriate each report we 
issue during the year is given an overall opinion based on the following criteria:  

 

No Assurance Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

Immediate action is 
required to address 
fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-
compliance 
identified. The 
system of 
governance, risk 
management and 
control is inadequate 
to effectively manage 
risks to the 
achievement of 
objectives in the area 
audited. 

Significant gaps, 
weaknesses or non-
compliance were 
identified. 
Improvement is 
required to the 
system of 
governance, risk 
management and 
control to effectively 
manage risks to the 
achievement of 
objectives in the area 
audited. 

There is a generally 
sound system of 
governance, risk 
management and 
control in place. 
Some issues, non-
compliance or scope 
for improvement 
were identified which 
may put at risk the 
achievement of 
objectives in the area 
audited. 

A sound system of 
governance, risk 
management and 
control exists, with 
internal controls 
operating effectively 
and being 
consistently applied 
to support the 
achievement of 
objectives in the area 
audited. 

 
 
2  Internal Audit Plan Update 
 

Reports were presented to the Council’s Audit and Risk Committee during the previous 
financial year, which updated the Committee on how Covid-19 had impacted the Council’s 
internal audit plan. These reports explained how a significant proportion of the audit resources 
had been temporarily redeployed to other areas of the Council’s business to provide 
assistance in a number of areas including the food distribution hub, the various business 
support grants team, assisting Procurement with supplier due diligence checks regarding the 
supply of personal protective equipment (PPE) and other Covid-19 related grant assurance. 
 
Since these reports were presented to the Committee, members of the team have continued to 
support areas of the business with existing grant schemes that are still live. Whilst the team 
continues to support the Council in these areas a small number of audits have been completed 
during quarter two, details of which are included under section three of this report. 

Page 74



                                
 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 
3 Summary of audit reviews completed 

The following audit reviews were completed by the end of the third quarter of the current year.  

 

Auditable area 
AAN 

Rating 

Recommendations 
 

Level of assurance Red Amber Green Total 
Number 
accepted 

2020/21 Audits        

Adult Education External Funding Medium - 1 2 3 3 Satisfactory 

ConnectED – CWC Supervisory Compliance Medium - 2 5 7 7 Satisfactory 

2021/22 Audits        

Co-ordination and Monitoring of School Financial 
Value Standard (SFVS) Returns 

Medium - - - - - Not Applicable 

2020/21 Senior Officer Remuneration High - - - - - Not Applicable 

Early Years Grant Arrangements Medium - 1 5 6 6 Satisfactory 

Children’s Residential Homes – Employee Working 
Hours 

Medium 3 3 1 7 7 Limited 

2020/21 Bad Debt Review Medium - - - - - Not Applicable 

Elections – Postal Votes Medium - - 5 5 5 Substantial 

WMPF Payroll Contribution Statements High - - - - - Substantial 

2020 – 2021 Transport Grant Certifications Medium - - - - - Not Applicable 

Graiseley Primary School Medium - 3 3 6 6 Satisfactory 

Wilkinson Primary School Medium - 1 1 2 2 Substantial 

Reported this quarter for the first time:        

Low Hill Nursery School Medium - - 8 8 8 Satisfactory 

Claregate Primary School Medium - 2 1 3 3 Substantial 

P
age 75



                                
 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 

 

Auditable area 
AAN 

Rating 

Recommendations 
 

Level of assurance Red Amber Green Total 
Number 
accepted 

Lawnswood Campus Sites    Medium - 9 12 21 21 Limited 

IR35 Compliance Review Medium 3 1 - 4 4 Limited 

Professional Conversations Medium - 3 - 3 3 Satisfactory 

Mayor's Charity Trust Audit Medium - - - - - Not Applicable 

School Census Procedures Medium - - 2 2 2 Substantial 

Troubled Families Grant Claim Medium - - - - - Not Applicable 

Key:  AAN  Assessment of assurance need.   
  

P
age 76



                                
 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 
 
4 On-going assurance where reports are not issued 

It is a requirement of the Internal Audit Charter that Internal Audit will remain sufficiently independent of the activities that it audits to 
enable auditors to perform their duties in a manner which facilitates impartial and effective professional judgements and 
recommendations. Objectivity is presumed to be impaired when individual auditors review any activity in which they have previously had 
operational responsibility. If individual auditors are extensively consulted during system, policy or procedure development, and 
independence could be seen as being compromised, or if they have had previous operational roles, they will be precluded from reviewing 
and making comments during routine or future audits, for the remainder of that financial year and for the following financial year after their 
involvement. Therefore, should any reviews be conducted on the below, then they will be led by another member of the audit team. 

 

Project/Programme Audit Service’s Role 

Pay Strategy A member of the team sits on the Council’s Pay Strategy Board. The purpose of the board 
is to ensure that all requests in respect pay and grading is approved in accordance with 
the Council’s Collective Agreement for NJC employees. 

Project Assurance Group A member of the team is involved in this group. The purpose of the group is to ensure that 
all of the Council’s projects and programmes, recorded through the Verto system, are 
reviewed and scrutinised. 

Business Support Programme A member of the team sits on the Board in the capacity of providing advice and support. 
The programme’s main objective is the centralisation of administration within the Council. 

City Learning Quarter Programme          Audit Services have been invited to provide an assurance role for the programme. This is 
a major capital investment project which has a reputational risk to the Council. 

Agresso Board A member of the team sits on this Board to oversee the on-going development of the 
Council’s enterprise resource planning (ERP) solution. 

Children’s Transformation Board 
A member of the team attends the Board and provides support and assurance on project 
management arrangements and specific audit issues. This also includes advice and 
support on the implementation of the new Eclipse management information system. 

Transform Adult Social Care 
Programme 

A member of the team attends the Board to provide support and assurance on project 
management arrangements and specific audit issues. 

P
age 77



                                
 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 

Project/Programme Audit Service’s Role 

Strategic Transport Asset Group A member of the team is involved in this group. The purpose of the group is to ensure that 
business cases submitted by business areas for vehicles and equipment replacement are 
reviewed and assessed prior to approval, as well as addressing future Council Fleet 
requirements and climate targets for a cleaner environment and reduction in carbon 
emissions, and future use of electric / hybrid vehicles.   

Civic Halls Operational Board A member of the team is a representative on this group. The purpose of the board is to 
oversee the operational delivery of the Civic Halls full refurbishment. 

Infrastructure for Growth Board The purpose of this group is to oversee the strategy of regeneration projects across the 
city to ensure there is a co-ordinated joined up approach. A member of the team is 
present on this board to provide support and assurance around governance. 

Our Assets Board A member of the team attends the Board to provide support and assurance on project 
management arrangements and any specific audit issues. 

Local Fibre Network Programme 
Board 

The purpose of this Board is to oversee the implementation and roll-out of a new fibre 
network across the city, which will enable superfast broadband. A member of the team 
attends the Board to provide support and assurance on project management 
arrangements and any specific audit issues. 
 

Art Gallery Improvements Scheme 
Board 

The purpose of this Board is to provide a strategic overview of the building improvements 
to the City’s Art Gallery. A member of the team attends the Board to provide support and 
assurance on project management arrangements and any specific audit issues. 
 

Adult Eclipse Project Board A member of the team will attend the Board to provide support and assurance on project 
management arrangements for the new Eclipse management information system and any 
specific audit issues. 
 

Business Improvement Programme 
Boards 

The purpose of these boards is to drive through service improvements in selected areas 
of the Council. Audit’s role on these boards is provide assurance around governance and 
risk, as well as addressing any particular audit issues. 

P
age 78



     

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 
5 Counter Fraud Activities 

The Audit Service’s team investigate all allegations of suspected fraudulent activity, during the 
year. Details of these will be presented to the Audit and Risk Committee in a separate report, 
along with details of initiatives put in place in order to both raise awareness of, and tackle fraud 
across the Council. 
 

6 Audit reviews underway at the end of Quarter 3 

There were are a number of reviews underway and these will be reported upon at a future 
committee meeting.  
 

7 Summary of issues from Quarter 3 reviews 
 
IR35 Compliance Review 
 
The purpose of this review was to provide assurance that the Council has robust systems and 
procedures in place to manage compliance with IR35 and identify contractors who fall within 
scope to avoid the risk of financial penalties.  In addition, a follow up of the recommendations 
made in the previous audit review has been undertaken to establish if agreed actions have 
been implemented. The main findings of the review were as follows: 
 

 Inconsistencies in the policies and procedures relating to the recruitment of agency 
workers/contractors. It was also not clear as to who was responsible for undertaking the 
IR35 checks to ensure the Council was fully compliant with the legislation. 

 There were several assumptions made when IR35 was implemented, which were still 
currently in place. These related to posts that were either in or out of scope in terms of 
IR35 assessments.  However, there was no reference as to how these posts will be 
assessed in the current policies or procedures. 

 Although there was a required process to follow when recruiting agency workers or 
contractors, it was identified that managers were not always following this process, and as 
a result were unaware of what their responsibilities were under IR35, which in turn poses a 
risk to the Council in terms of not complying with the legislation. 

 There was evidence that required IR35 checks had not been undertaken. Also, for those 
checks completed there were some cases where insufficient evidence was on file to 
support whether the agency worker/contractor, and their intermediary, had been notified of 
the determination. 

 
 Lawnswood Campus Pupil Referral Unit 

  
Lawnswood Campus is home to three Pupil Referral Units, the Braybrook Centre, The Midpoint 
Centre the Orchard Centre which includes the Nightingale Home and Hospital Service serving 
the schools in Wolverhampton as part of a city wide strategy to promote inclusion and positive 
behaviour in safe, secure, child-centred, positive and nurturing environments. 
 
 Braybrook: Key Stage 3 children and young people with social, emotional and 

behavioural difficulties and includes a Student Support Centre and Outreach Service. 
 Midpoint: Key Stage 4 children and young people with social, emotional and 

behavioural difficulties and includes a Student Support Centre and Outreach Service. 
 Orchard: Key Stage 3 and 4 children and young people who require social, emotional 

or mental health (SEMH) support. 
 
 

Page 79



     

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 
 Nightingale: KS2-KS4 specialist short stay Centre that works in partnership with key 

agencies to offer appropriate intervention to vulnerable students with medical and 
mental health needs in a supportive and structured setting. 

 
All four services have been rated as ‘Good’ in their last Ofsted inspections. 
 
Our review was undertaken between November and December 2021 and the scope covered the 
arrangements made by the school in respect of governance, protection of people, assets and data, 
and expenditure and income. Our main findings were as follows: 
 

 The minutes of the Management Committee and the Finance and General Purposes 
Committee for 2020 to 2021 did not always reflect the key decisions being made and 
appendices were not being referenced in or attached to the minutes of the meetings. 

 Declarations of interest had not been made by all members of the Management 
Committee and key financial staff. 

 The Centres websites were not compliant with the requirements set out in the 
Constitution of Governing Bodies of Maintained Schools. In addition, the school had not 
completed or published its Covid19 Risk assessment. 

 There were no inventories for any of the Centres. 

 Details of virements being undertaken at each of the Centres were not being reported to 
the Management Committee. 

 In one case details of expenditure in excess of the Executive Headteachers delegated 
limits was not presented to the Management Committee for approval. 

 A number of invoices order had been raised following receipt of the invoice, therefore 
budgetary commitments were not promptly recorded in the financial system, and also in 
some cases there was limited evidence of goods receipting / confirmation of service 
received. 

 
Following the audit, the school have implemented an action plan to address the areas identified 
for improvement and we plan to carry out a follow up review in July 2022.  
 
Professional Conversations 
 
An audit review of the newly introduced Professional Conversations process had previously 
been undertaken in March 2021 and had led to a limited assurance opinion due to low 
completion rates, awareness, and training associated with the process.  
 
A follow up review involving a new employee survey was undertaken in order to ascertain if 
the improvements recommended had been implemented. Based on the findings of a survey 
we undertook as a key component of our review, there had been a significant improvement on 
the awareness of the Professional Conversation scheme and in the completion of such 
conversations.  
 
Following our latest review, we did make recommendations in the following areas: 
 

 There remained a need to ensure that all employees completed the Professional 
Conversations mandatory training. 

 Equalities should be incorporated as a core item within the Professional Conversation 
Process. 

 Consideration to be given to recording Professional Conversations on Agresso 
Business World. 

  

Page 80



     

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Internal Audit Update 
Quarter 3 

 

 
The results from the latest survey were as follows: 
 

  
 
Key Financial Systems 
 
The 2021-20222 key financial systems reviews are underway. These reviews involve the 
auditing of each financial system’s core controls. The team have changed the way we 
undertake these reviews as we are now undertaking transactional testing throughout the year 
in order to minimise the impact on services at year end. The advantage of adopting this 
approach also means that we can identify issues earlier so that corrective measures can be 
put in place. A summary report of the year’s findings will be produced towards the end of the 
year. 
 

8 Follow-up of previous recommendations 

We continue to monitor the implementation of previous key recommendations, and any major 
issues of concern relating to their non-implementation, will be reported back to the Audit and 
Risk Committee.  

 
9 Changes to the Audit Plan during the year 

As a result of timing issues and other mitigating factors a small number of audits have been fed 
back into the audit universe and where appropriate will be completed and reported upon in the 
2022-2023 year. This will not impact upon the ability to provide an end of year audit opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management and control 
framework. These include SEND and Post 16 Provision in Schools, the wider Programme and 
Project Management Framework, Recruitment Selection, Housing Capital Programme and Adult 
Services Service Provider Fee Review.  

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

  

 

  

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022 

  
Report Title Audit Services – Counter Fraud Update 

Accountable Director Claire Nye                Finance 

Accountable employee 

 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 

Peter Farrow 
Tel 
Email 
 
Not applicable 

Head of Audit 
01902 554460 
peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 
 
Recommendation for noting: 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The contents of the latest Audit Services Counter Fraud Update.  
  

Page 83

Agenda Item No: 11



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

  

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on current counter fraud 

activities undertaken by Audit Services. 
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Counter Fraud Unit was set up within Audit Services, in response to the increased 

emphasis being placed upon both fraud prevention and detection by Central 
Government. 

 
3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 
 
3.1 At the last meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee in December 2021, it was agreed 

that regular updates on the progress the Council was making in tackling fraud would 
continue to be brought before the Committee. 

 
4.0 Financial implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 
 [GE/25022022/S]  
    
5.0 Legal implications 
 
5.1 Investigations by the Counter Fraud Unit may have legal implications depending upon 

what action is taken or decided against in respect of those investigations.  
  [TC/28022022/D] 
 
6.0 Equalities implications 
 
6.1 Equalities issues are taken into consideration where appropriate during fraud related 

activities undertaken during the year.  
 
7.0 All other implications 
 
7.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 
 
8.0 Schedule of background papers 

8.1 There are no background papers. 
 
 

Page 84



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

  

 

Audit Services 
Counter Fraud Report  
@ March 2022 

Page 85



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

1 Introduction 

The counter fraud agenda is one that continues to hold significant prominence from 
Central Government who are promoting a wide range of counter fraud activities. The 
purpose of this report is to bring the Audit and Risk Committee up to date on the 
counter-fraud activities undertaken by the Counter Fraud Unit within Audit Services.  

The Council is committed to creating and maintaining an environment where fraud, 
corruption and bribery will not be tolerated. This message is made clear within the 
Authority’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, which states: “The Council operates a 
zero tolerance on fraud, corruption and bribery whereby all instances will be 
investigated, and the perpetrator(s) will be dealt with in accordance with established 
policies. Action will be taken to recover all monies stolen from the Council.” 

2 The Counter Fraud Team 

The Counter Fraud Team, which sits within Audit Services, is continuing to develop 
and lead in raising fraud awareness across the Council and in promoting an anti-fraud 
culture. The team carries out investigations into areas of suspected or reported 
fraudulent activity and organises a series of Council wide pro-active fraud activities, 
including the targeted testing of areas open to the potential of fraudulent activity. The 
team maintains the Council’s fraud risk register, implements the counter fraud plan and 
leads on the Cabinet Office’s National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise. 
 
The team also provide a tenancy fraud investigation service to Wolverhampton Homes 
under a service level agreement. 
 
During the Covid-19 Pandemic members of the Counter Fraud Team have supported 
the due diligence activities undertaken before and after the award of the various 
support grants introduced by Central Government to reduce the risk of fraud. 

 
3 Counter Fraud Update 

 Counter Fraud Plan 
The latest status of progress against the counter fraud plan is shown at Appendix 1 
 

 Fraud Risk Register  
The Counter Fraud Team maintains the Council’s fraud risk register. The register is 
used to help identify areas for testing and to inform future audit assurance plans by 
focusing on the areas with the ‘highest’ risk of fraud. The latest fraud risk register is 
included at Appendix 2. 

 Covid-19 Business Support Grants 
To support Local Authorities in the administration of these grants, the Department for 
Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) Counter Fraud Function developed a toolkit that 
included a range of measures that could be used to reduce the risk of fraud and error 
in these schemes. Where appropriate these tools were used by the Council when 
assessing each application and prior to payment. 

 

 

Page 86



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

While BEIS placed an emphasis on speed of payment the Council completed due 
diligence checks in accordance with the BEIS Counter Fraud toolkit. These checks 
were designed to reduce the risk of fraud and error in the grant schemes. BEIS also 
agreed to stand behind any erroneous grant payments subject to Local Authorities 
taking reasonable and practicable measures to minimise the risk of errors and/or fraud, 
avoid making payments to those not entitled and to take reasonable and practicable 
steps to recover any over-payments 

 

 Business Grants Paid April to September 2020 
 

The total number of Small Business Grants, Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Grants and 
Discretionary Grants paid was: 
 

Small Business Grants paid 3,255 £32,550,000 

Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants paid 724 £12,620,000 

Discretionary Grants paid 296 £2,275,000 

Total number of grants paid 4,275 £47,445,000 

 

Following a series of post payments checks on the above 4,275 grants, invoices were 
raised to recover payment for ineligibility, as follows: 

  

Small Business Grants found to be ineligible and an 
invoice raised for recovery 

20 £210,000 

Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants found to be 
ineligible and an invoice raised for recovery 

3 £75,000 

Discretionary Grants 3 £15,000 

Total grants where invoices were raised for 
recovery 

26 £300,000 

 

 Page 87



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

Of the above 26 invoices raised £152,065 has been recovered. The number of grants 
being recovered previously totalled 31, but this has reduced to 26 after recipients 
provided additional evidence to confirm eligibility to receive a grant. Recovery action for 
the remaining outstanding amounts is continuing and further progress will be reported 
to future meetings of this Committee. 

 

 Business Grants Paid October 2020 onwards 

 

Since October 2020 BEIS introduced a series of additional local and national 
restrictions support grants designed to provide financial support to businesses and 
individuals affected by the ongoing Covid-19 measures. These grants are subject to 
similar due diligence checks to those applied to the previous rounds of grants and this 
process will remain a significant piece of work. As at the mid-February 2022 the 
following grants had been awarded. 
 

Total number of grants paid (all types) 11,220 £32,840,431 

 
To assist with managing the grants awarded since October 2020 the Council has used 
third party software to manage the application, checking and award process. 
 
Following a series of post payments checks on the above 11,220 grants paid, invoices 
were raised to recover payment for ineligibility, as follows: 

 

Total Local and National Restrictions Support 
Grants (all types) 

23 £102,528 

 
Of the above 23 invoices raised £17,123 has been recovered. The number of grants 
being recovered previously totalled 25, but this has reduced to 23 after recipients 
provided additional evidence to confirm eligibility to receive a grant. Recovery action for 
the remaining invoices is continuing and further progress will be reported to future 
meetings of this Committee. 

 
Reporting Potentially Fraudulent Business Grants 
 
The Council will continue to complete pre and post payment checks for all business 
grants awarded and take recovery action where necessary. Further action may also be 
required due to fraudulent activity. It is anticipated that BEIS will provide the Council 
with further advice and guidance on any recovery or legal action required to be taken. 
 
Grants where an invoice has been raised to recover the payment, plus several other 
applications where a payment was not made but potential fraud was suspected, have 
been reported to the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN). BEIS has appointed NAFN 
to collate details of all potentially fraudulent activity in relation to the Covid-19 Business 
Grants. The information is also used by Crime Agencies to identify potential criminal 
activity and organised crime. 
 
BEIS Business Grant Post Payment Assurance 
 
Following completion of the first three business grant schemes, in September 2020, the 
Council was required to provide evidence of the pre and post payment checks 
completed for fifteen applications randomly selected by BEIS.  A similar process will Page 88



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

now be required for each of the Business Grant schemes introduced since October 
2020. BEIS will assess the evidence to determine whether the Council has followed a 
satisfactory process when awarding the grants. 

 
BEIS has indicated that they are to provide further guidance on business grant debt 
recovery and counter fraud activities. Once details are known the Council will 
determine the impact and report any outcomes to future meetings of this Committee. 
 
National Fraud Initiative Exercise 2020/21 
The Counter Fraud Unit co-ordinates the investigation of matches identified by the 
Cabinet Office’s National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching exercises. Where 
matches are identified, the ensuing investigations may detect instances of fraud, over 
or underpayments, and other errors. A match does not automatically mean there is a 
fraud. Often there is another explanation for a data match that prompts bodies to 
update their records and to improve their systems. The NFI exercise also provides 
assurance to management that systems are working effectively where fraud and error 
is not present. 

 
The latest NFI exercise commenced in January 2021 and a total of 10,407 matches 
have been released. The matches are graded with over 1,500 classed as the highest 
quality of match, these are prioritised for investigation. Work is progressing to 
investigate the various types of matches with over 1,543 matches checked. As further 
matches are processed details of the progress made will be brought before the 
Committee. 

 
Counter Fraud Team - Tenancy Fraud 
The Counter Fraud Teams Tenancy Fraud results for April 2021 to February 2022 are 
shown in the following tables: 

 

*The savings figures for tenancy fraud are based on methodology and calculations produced by the 
Cabinet Office in support of the National Fraud Initiative. The figures include: 

Social housing tenancy fraud - Notional £93,000 this recognises the future losses prevented from 
recovering the property. Previously the calculation only considered one year’s loss. 

 Apr 2021 – Aug 2021 Sept 2021 – Feb 2022 

Type of fraud and / or error Cases *Value £ Cases *Value £ 

Social Housing Application fraud – 
offers withdrawn and/or applicants 
excluded from waiting list 

1 3,240 4 12,960 

Tenancy sub-letting – Illegal 
subletting of properties which were 
recovered  

1 93,000 - - 

Succession/Assignment – applicant 
prevented from obtaining a tenancy to 
which they are not entitled. 

1 93,000 3  279,000 

Right to buy – preventing fraudulent 
RTB applications 

- - 1 65,000 

Non-occupation – not using the 
property as a residence. 

- - 3 279,000 

Total 3 189,240 11 635,960 

Page 89



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Social housing application fraud – Notional £3,240 this is based on the annual cost of temporary 
accommodation, the likelihood that individuals on the waiting list would be provided a council property, 
and the duration for which fraud or error may continue undetected. 
 
Right to Buy fraud – Notional £65,000 the notional saving for a Right to Buy (RTB) application that has 
been withdrawn is calculated by the Cabinet Office based on the region in which the property is based, 
the increases in the maximum RTB cap and the changes in average house prices. This method allows 
for benchmarking to be carried out. 

 National Anti-Fraud Network Intelligence Notifications 
The National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) issues regular alerts which provide 
information on fraud attempts, trends and emerging threats. The information provided 
in the alerts has been notified to NAFN by other local authorities from across the 
country. These alerts are checked to the Council’s systems to verify whether there 
have been any instances at Wolverhampton.  
 
Alerts which either involve suppliers used by the Council or are applicable to all 
Councils, are notified to appropriate sections of the Council. The most common alerts 
relate to Covid-19 Business Rates Relief Grant frauds, Bank Mandate fraud, Council 
Tax Refund fraud, cyber fraud including ransomware and email interception.  
 
Emerging areas of fraud and subject to recent fraud alerts include Omicron grant fraud 
where the details of a number of fraudulently used bank accounts have recently been 
provided. All have been checked and none were found to have been used at 
Wolverhampton. Another alert was issued regarding Postal Vote Fraud. 
 
Midland Fraud Group 
This group consists of fraud officers from across the Midland’s local authorities. The 
purpose of the group is to identify and discuss the outcome of initiatives being used to 
tackle fraud. At the last meeting in February 2022 discussions were held on: 
 

 Post verification of Covid-19 grants. 

 Money Laundering. 

 Other cases of interest. 
 

 

Page 90



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

                   Appendix 1 

Counter Fraud Plan Update 

Issue Action Timescale 

Raising counter fraud 
awareness across the 
Council 

Develop and deliver Fraud Awareness seminars Fraud based training 
provided Autumn 
2019. Next round of 
training to be planned 

Develop on-line fraud training for staff. To be refreshed 
Spring 2022 

Work with Workforce Development to develop and 
promote fraud training. 

Fraud seminars and 
surgeries previously 
promoted through City 
People  
 
New training package 
to be introduced 
Summer 2022 

Establish measures for assessing the level of 
employee fraud awareness. 

Spring 2022 

Hold fraud surgeries to enable staff to report areas of 
suspected fraud. 

Fraud surgeries 
planned for Spring 
2022 

Use various forms of media to promote fraud 
awareness across the Council including City People, 
the intranet and the internet. 
 

Fraud seminars and 
surgeries will be 
promoted through City 
People  

Work closely with Wolverhampton Homes and seek 
opportunities to promote joint fraud awareness. 

On-going 

Work with national, 
regional and local 
networks to identify 
current fraud risks and 
initiatives. 

Maintain membership of the National Anti-Fraud 
Network (NAFN). 
 

On-going 

Participate in the Cabinet Office’s National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) data matching exercises. Acting as key 
contact for the Council, the West Midlands Pension 
Scheme and Wolverhampton Homes. 
 

On-going. Latest 
exercise commenced 
January 2021 

Complete the annual CIPFA fraud survey. CIPFA Survey last 
required to be 
completed Aug 2020  

Investigate opportunities to develop the use of NFI 
real time and near real time data matching. 
 

Ongoing 

Participate in CIPFA’s technical information service. On-going 

Maintain membership of the Midlands Fraud Group. On-going – last 
meeting February 
2022 next meeting 
June 2022 

Attend external fraud seminars and courses. 
 
 

Midland Fraud Forum 
Conference July 2021,  
CIFAS Working 
together to prevent 
fraud September Page 91



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

Issue Action Timescale 

2021, NAFN AGM & 
Conference October 
2021, Cyber Security 
Conference November 
2021, Whistleblowing 
November 2021, 
Economic Crime 
Conference February 
22 

 
Assess the counter 
fraud strategy against 
best practice 
 

Complete national fraud self-assessments, for 
example: 

 

 CIPFA Code of Practice 

 
As and when next 
updated by CIPFA 

 CIPFA Counter Fraud Tracker Survey 

 

Annually 

 The former Department for Communities and 
Local Government – ten actions to tackle 
fraud against the Council. 
 

On-going 
 

 Consideration of fraud resilience toolkit 
 

On-going 
 

Identify and rank the 
fraud risks facing the 
Council 

Manage the Council’s fraud risk register to ensure 
key risks are identified and prioritised. 

Updated quarterly 
and presented to the 
Audit and Risk 
Committee 
 

Develop measures of potential fraud risk to help 
justify investment in counter fraud initiatives. 
 

On-going 

Seek opportunities to integrate the fraud risk register 
with other corporate risk registers and also the Audit 
Services Audit Plan 
 

On-going 

Work with other fraud 
investigation teams at 
the Council 

Develop good communication links between the 
Counter Fraud Unit, Wolverhampton Homes, and 
Audit Services. 
 

The Council’s Counter 
Fraud Team provide a 
tenancy fraud service 
to Wolverhampton 
Homes. 

Work with external 
organisations to share 
knowledge about 
frauds?  
 

Establish formal joint working relationships with 
external bodies, for example Police, Health Service 
and Immigration Enforcement. 
 

On-going 

Participate in external 
initiatives and address 
requests for information 

Implement industry best practice as identified in 
reports produced by external bodies, for example; 
CIPFA’s Annual Fraud Tracker Survey and the 
National Fraud Initiative report. 
 

Annual/on-going 

Encourage Service Areas to participate in initiatives 
to identify cases of fraud. 

Liaise with other 
services where 
appropriate 

Look for opportunities to use analytical techniques 
such as data matching to identify frauds perpetrated 
across bodies, for example other Councils. 
 

On-going 

Page 92



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

Issue Action Timescale 

Undertake a programme of proactive target testing. On-going 

Respond to external requests for information or 
requests to take part in national initiatives. 

On-going 

All cases of reported 
fraud are identified, 
recorded and 
investigated in 
accordance with best 
practice and 
professional standards. 

Work with Service Areas to develop methods of 
recognising, measuring and recording all forms of 
fraud. 
 

Liaise with other 
services where 
appropriate 

Manage and co-ordinate fraud investigations across 
the Council. 

As reported back to 
the Audit and Risk 
Committee on a 
quarterly basis 

 
Implement and update the Council’s portfolio of fraud 
related policies in response to changes in legislation. 

Latest version will be 
presented to the Audit 
and Risk Committee in 
Summer 2022 
 

Where appropriate take sanctions against the 
perpetrators of fraud either internally in conjunction 
with Human Resources and Legal Services or 
externally by the Police. 
 

On-going 

Ensure responsibility 
for counter fraud 
activities is included in 
Partnership 
agreements with 
external bodies. 
 

Embed responsibility for counter fraud activities in 
partnership agreements with the Council’s strategic 
partners. 
 

On-going 

Partnership agreements to include the Council’s 
rights of access to conduct fraud investigations. 
 

On-going 

Provide the opportunity 
for employees and 
members of the public 
to report suspected 
fraud. 
  

Manage and promote the Whistleblowing Hotline and 
record all reported allegations of fraud. 

City People article – 
planned for Spring 
2022 

Promote and hold fraud surgeries that provide the 
opportunity for staff to discuss any potentially 
fraudulent activity at the Council. 

Fraud surgeries 
planned for Spring 
2022 

Seek other methods of engaging with employees and 
the public to report fraud. 

On-going – for 
example through the 
Council’s internet site 

Where appropriate ensure allegations are 
investigated and appropriate action taken. 

On-going 

Work with and develop procedures for carrying out 
investigations with other service areas for example 
Human Resources, Legal Services and 
Wolverhampton Homes. 

On-going 

Inform members and 
senior officers of 
counter fraud activities. 
 

Report quarterly to the Audit Committee on the 
implementation of Counter Fraud initiatives and the 
progress and outcome of fraud investigations. 
 

On-going 

Page 93



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

Appendix 2 
Fraud Risk Register @ March 2022           

Themes Potential fraud type Risk rating 

Housing Tenancy Subletting for profit, providing false information to gain a tenancy, wrongful tenancy assignment and succession, failing to use 
the property as the principle home, right to buy. This risk is managed by Wolverhampton Homes. 

Red 

Council Tax Fraudulently claiming for discounts and exemptions such as the single person’s discount and Local Council Tax Support 
Schemes. 

Red 

Personal Budgets Falsely claiming that care is needed, carers using direct payments for personal gain, carers continuing to receive direct 
payments after a person dies, duplicate applications submitted to multiple Councils. 

Red 

Cyber Security Using technology as a tool to commit acts of fraud – this currently has a very high profile and is an ever-increasing area 
susceptible to fraud 

Red 

Covid-19  The Council was open to fraud and misappropriation due to changes in legislation and the speed in which government 
support grants needed to be processed.  

Amber 

Welfare Assistance Fraudulent claims. Amber 

Procurement Collusion (employees and bidders), false invoices, overcharging, inferior goods and services, duplicate invoices.  Amber 

Business Rates Evading payment, falsely claiming mandatory and discretionary rate relief, empty property exemption, charity status. Amber 

Payroll ‘ghost’ employees, expenses, claims, recruitment. Amber 

Blue Badge Fraudulent applications use by others and continuing use after a person dies. Amber 

Electoral Postal voting, canvassing. Amber 

Schools School accounts, expenses, procurement, finance leases. Amber 

Bank Mandate Fraud Fraudulent request for change of bank details (increased following a recent case). Amber 

Theft Theft of Council assets including cash (increased following a recent case). Amber 

Insurance Fraudulent and exaggerated claims. Green 

Manipulation of data Amending financial records and performance information. Green 

Grants False grant applications, failure to use for its intended purpose. Green 

P
age 94



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

Bribery Awarding of contracts, decision making. Green 

Money Laundering Accepting payments from the proceeds of crime. Green 

 
 

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

  

 

Audit and Risk 
Committee 
14 March 2022 

  
Report title Payment Transparency 
  

Accountable director Claire Nye, Finance 

Accountable employee 

 

Peter Farrow 

Tel 

Email 

 

Head of Audit 

01902 554460 

peter.farrow@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

Not applicable  

 

 

Recommendation for noting: 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The Council’s current position with regards to the publication of all its expenditure.  

  

Page 97

Agenda Item No: 12



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 This report is to update the Committee on the Council’s current position with regards to 

the publication of all its expenditure.  

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The latest position on the Council’s payment transparency activity is as follows: 

 The Council publishes its own spend data which is available on the Council’s 

internet site under Transparency and Accountability (payments to suppliers) 

and is updated monthly. 

 Since last reported to the Audit and Risk Committee, there have been no 

requests for information from the public (as an ‘armchair auditor’).  

 

3.0 Progress, options, discussion 

 

3.1 We will continue to report back to the Audit and Risk Committee on the details of any 

‘armchair auditor’ requests the Council receives.  

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 

 [GE/25022022/Q] 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendation in this report.  

 [TC/28022022/E]] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 Any equalities issues will be addressed as part of the process for the procurement of 

goods and services where appropriate, and as such will be addressed at that time. 

 

7.0 All other implications  

 

7.1 There are no other implications arising from this report. 

 

8.0 Schedule of background papers –  

 

8.1 None 

Page 98


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	5 Strategic Risk Register
	7 Grant Thornton Annual Audit Report
	8 Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference Annual Review
	9 Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023
	Appendix 2 for Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023

	10 Internal Audit Progress Report
	11 Counter Fraud Update
	12 Payment Transparency

